
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING JANUARY 02, 2013    Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY JANUARY 2, 2013 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE CALIFORNIA 92252 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT: At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the 
Board’s jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone. The Board may not 
discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda.   
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and 
appreciates your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
 

 
 
 
Pg. 1-4 
 
Pg. 5-7 
Pg. 8-25 
 
 
Pg. 26-27 
 
Pg. 28-29 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be adopted in 
total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any individual or organization interested 
in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Minutes of the November 28, 2012 Special Joint Meeting of the Board and 
Citizens Advisory Committee 

B. Approve Minutes of the December 12, 2012 Special Board Meeting 
C. Check Audit Report for November 2012 
D. Change of time for Regular Agenda Committee Meeting to Tuesday a week prior to each 

Board meeting at 3:15 pm 
E. Recommend that the Board affirm adoption of Resolution 12-896 expressing the Board 

of Directors’ appreciation for Director Bill Long  
F. Recommend that the Board adopt of Resolution 12-899  expressing the Board of 

Directors’ condolences on the death of Mike Luhrs 
 

 7. UPDATE OF MOJAVE WATER AGENCY ACTIVITIES BY MOJAVE WATER AGENCY 
GENERAL MANAGER KIRBY BRILL, AND INTRODUCTION OF NEW PUBLIC INFORMATION 
OFFICER YVONNE HESTER. 
 

Pg. 30 8. PURCHASE OF 3-YEAR SUPPLY OF MXU BATTERIES FOR ELECTRONIC METER READING 
Recommend that the Board authorize the purchase of approximately 2,000 batteries and appropriate up to 
$50,000 from the “Opportunity Reserve. 
 

Pg. 31-32 9. CONSIDERATION OF 2081 “INCIDENTAL TAKE” PERMIT FOR GROUND WATER RECHARGE 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING JANUARY 02, 2013    Page 2 of 2 
 

PROJECT 
Recommend that the Board take one of the following actions: 
1)  Determine not to apply for an “Incidental Take” 2081 Permit from the California Department of Fish 
and Game for the Ground Water Recharge Project; or 2) Determine to apply for the 2081 permit and 
attempt to transfer District-entitled land from the Bureau of Land Management or other agency 
acceptable to Fish and Game within the next 18 months. 
 

Pg. 33-36 10. REVIEW STRATEGIC PLAN SUMMARY 
 

 11. 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: President Luckman and Director Fuller: Kathleen 

Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. 
 

 12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s jurisdiction 
that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may not discuss at 
length or take action on items not on the agenda. 
 

 13. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Pg. 37-39 

14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
A. Appoint new Board Engineering and Agenda Committee members 
B. Appoint Personnel/Finance Ad Hoc Committee 
C. Appoint representatives for MWA TAC, Morongo Pipeline Commission, ASBCSD, and 

LAFCO Meetings 
D. Consider applications for appointment to CAC 
 

 15. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 17. ADJOURNMENT 
 

INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
 

This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on January 9 at 7:00 pm and January 16 at 7:00 pm. 
DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office  

and at the Joshua Tree Library. 



  
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
AND CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

November 28, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF BOARD 
QUORUM: 

Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

DETERMINATION OF CITIZENS 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
QUORUM: 

Barbara Delph           Present 
Victoria Fuller           Present 
Jay St. Gaudens         Present 
Penny Mason             Absent 
Karen Tracy               Present 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 7 
Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Chair Jay St. Gaudens called the special meeting of the CAC to order. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Board:  MSC Long/Luckman 5/0 to approve the agenda for the November 28, 2012 Special Meeting of the 

Board of Directors and Citizens Advisory Committee. 
CAC:  MSC Fuller/Tracy 4/0 (1 Absent) to approve the agenda for the November 28, 2012 Special Meeting 

of the Board of Directors and Citizens Advisory Committee. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Michael Perez of Joshua Tree commented he feels we are in crisis in California concerning water; he is here 

to learn. 
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
President Reynolds noted regarding Item 6d he is considering appointing a committee to act as negotiators 

with the Management/Supervisory and Exempt Employees regarding benefit and compensation. 
Director Coate  requested clarification on the draft minutes of the November 7 Board meeting. District 
Counsel Gil Granito clarified the word “Board” could be replaced with “District’ on page 3 of the draft 



minutes of the November  7th Board meeting under Item 19. 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to approve the minutes of the November 7, 2012 Regular Board Meeting with 

changes as noted; to approve the check audit report for October 2012; to approve the financial report for 
October 2012; and to continue Item D  of the consent calendar to a future meeting. 

 

7. PRESENTATION ON EMERGENCY PHONE TREE 
Public Outreach Consultant Kathleen Radnich explained the purpose and use of the emergency phone tree 

and entertained questions from the Board, CAC and guests. 
 

8. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR GRANTS FOR GROUND WATER RECHARGE PROJECT 
GM Guzzetta reported that the Board had previously approved submittal of a Title XVI Grant proposal and 

there is an opportunity for the District to submit an additional proposal for grant funding. 
Michael Perez of Joshua Tree requested a brief description of the second grant; GM Guzzetta reported that 

the intent is to use possible funding from both grants for the Recharge Pipeline and Basin Project. 
Director Wilson stated he is opposed to the project. Director Long stated he is in favor of the second grant 

proposal to better the chances of the District being awarded grant funds. CAC Chair Jay St. Gaudens 
commented in favor of both grant proposals. 

MSC Long/Luckman 3/1 (1 Abstain) to adopt Resolution 12-894 authorizing submittal of a Title XVI 
Bureau of Reclamation Grant in the amount of about $2.3 million as authorized at the last meeting; to 
authorize Resolution # 12-895 authorizing submittal of a Water Smart Water and Energy Efficiency 
Grant from the Bureau of Reclamation in the amount of $2 million; and, recognize that the General 
Manager has authorized Dudek Engineering to initiate the Water Smart Energy Efficiency Grant in an 
amount of approximately $10,000 to be paid from the General Fund Opportunity Reserve. 

   Coate  Abstain 
   Fuller  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 

9. APPROVE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR CROSS-CONNECTION POSITION 
GM Guzzetta reported on the proposed job description that will include responsibility for the District’s 

Cross Connection Control/Backflow prevention program.  
Discussion ensued. Director Coate made a motion to approve the job description for Cross Connection 
Control Specialist/ Construction & Maintenance Worker I and II.  GM Guzzetta requested that the item be 
continued to a future meeting. 
  

10. JOB DESCRIPTION AND SALARY RANGE FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGER/ADMINISTRATIVE SPECIALIST 

GM Guzzetta reported, noting that the position of HR/Administrative Services Supervisor position was 
vacated several months ago as a cost-saving measure. HR responsibilities have been assigned to the 
executive Secretary for the last six months. Board discussion ensued.  

MSC Coate/Luckman 4/1 to approve staff recommendation to approve the job description for Human 
Resources Manager/Administrative Specialist and to approve a salary range of $58,597 to $76,184. 

   Coate  Aye 
   Fuller  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 



   Wilson  No 
 

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long; Kathleen 

Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant reported the Public Information Committee regular meeting will 
be postponed. A groundbreaking ceremony will be held for the pipeline project. 

B. AD HOC ENGINEERING AND RECHARGE COMMITTEE: Director Long and Director Coate: 
Director Coate reported on the Hi-Desert Medical Center wastewater facility project which is 
proceeding ahead of schedule. USGS continues to work on the study. SEMS reporting is working 
well and SEMS reports will come to the Board soon. Director Coate reported that he and the general 
manager are the committee for new director orientation process. 

 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
CAC Chair Jay St. Gaudens thanked Victoria Fuller who has been elected to a Board director position and 
will be missed on the CAC. 
 

13. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
The general manager had nothing further to report. 
 

14. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
District Counsel Granito reported that the Ellis litigation, tried in spring of 2011 is now in appellate court 

and extensions have been granted. District Counsel Gil Granito received a notice from the court that 
they are proceeding without further days. 

GM Guzzetta noted that special meeting cannot be held without notification of all board members; staff will 
bring to the board a waiver form that can be used in case a special meeting is needed when there is a 
situation that may prevent notification of a board member. 

 

15. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Director Coate requested that Dudek Engineering prepare a report regarding hospital wastewater treatment 

contract to consider the comparative costs of contracting for maintenance services or providing those 
services in-house.  

 

16. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Coate thanked Director Long for his support noting that he has served with Director Long on 

several committees. 
Director Long reported attending the Mojave Water Agency Board meeting where discussion was held on 

updating the regional water management plan; consideration of whether to spend a large amount of 
money for preparation of an updated regional water management plan hinged on future grant 
possibilities. 

Vice President Luckman commented that she will be attending the next Mojave Water Agency Board 
meeting. She attended the Local Agency Formation Commission meeting the day before Thanksgiving 
which dealt with Twentynine Palms Cemetery District and Morongo Valley Community Services 
District. 

President Reynolds reported attending the Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts monthly 
meeting. He welcomed Victoria Fuller who will be the new JBWD Board member, and noted Director 
Long has been on the JBWD Board nine years; he expressed gratitude for Director Long being a mentor 
for him. 

Director Long commented he has been a Board member for nine years and the majority of people here are 



like family to him; he was thankful for these friendships. He noted the value of serving on the Board is 
tremendous. 

President Reynolds thanked all who attended tonight’s meeting and commented there will be a vacancy on 
the Citizens Advisory Committee. 

 
17. CLOSED SESSION 
There was no closed session. 
 
18. ADJOURNMENT   8:36 PM 
MSC Long/Luckman 5/0 to adjourn the November 28, 2012 Special Joint Meeting of the Board of Directors 
and Citizens Advisory Committee. 
 

 Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for December 5, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 

  
 



  
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

December 12, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE 
General Manager Joe Guzzetta administered the Oath of Office to Directors Victoria Fuller, Mickey 
Luckman, Frank Coate and Mike Reynolds. 
 

4. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Victoria Fuller 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Marie Salsberry, HR Manager/Administrative Specialist 
Anne Roman, Accountant 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Paul Kaymark, District Auditor 
 

GUESTS 8 
 
5. RESOLUTION HONORING JBWD DIRECTOR BILL LONG 
President Reynolds read Resolution 12-896; A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin 

Water District Expressing Their Appreciation for William C. “Bill” Long. 
President Reynolds called for a recess at 7:09 pm and the meeting resumed at 7:20 pm. 
 

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Luckman/Fuller 5/0 to approve the agenda for the December 12, 2012 Special Meeting of the Board 

of Directors. 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
8. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Luckman/Coate 5/0 to approve cancellation of the December 19th, 2012 Regular Board Meeting and 

to Adopt Resolution 12-897 Opening  a New Bank Account and Authorizing Signers at US Bank. 
 

9. FISCAL YEAR 11/12 AUDIT REPORT PRESENTATION FROM CHARLES Z. FEDAK & 
COMPANY, CPAs 

Assistant General Manager/Controller Susan Greer introduced Paul Kaymark from Charles Z Fedak & 
Company Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kaymark explained the audit process. 



Steven Whitman of Joshua Tree asked whether the auditor had a process for auditing preparation and 
signing of checks to protect against fraud or embezzlement. Mr. Kaymark explained that sample 
selection is used to test the validity of controls that the agency has in place. 

Richard Fountain of Joshua Tree asked whether the District is fully funding depreciation. AGM/Controller 
Greer stated that total depreciation is about $1.2 million and about $200,000 of that amount is not 
funded at this time. 

Luckman/Fuller 5/0 to approve staff recommendation to accept and file the Fiscal Year 11/12 Audit report. 
 
10. APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT CONTRACTS FOR GROUND WATER 

RECHARGE PIPELINE PROJECT 
GM Guzzetta reported on proposals received for construction management and inspection, geotechnical 

consulting, and construction staking.  
MSC Coate/Luckman 4/1  to approve staff recommendation to authorize the following contracts and costs 

for the ground water recharge project:  1) Dudek in the amount of $125,000 for construction 
management and inspection;  2) Leighton Engineering in the amount of $68,000 for geotechnical 
consulting;  3) MSA in the amount of $30,000 for construction staking; and  4) a 10% contingency in 
the amount of $22,500. 

   Coate  Aye 
   Fuller  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
 

11. CONSIDER EARLY PAYOFF OF ID#2 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
AGM/Controller Greer reported that the payoff date for the 1974 Improvement District #2 bonds is 

scheduled for March 1, 2015 but the District can save about $19,000 by paying the bonds early. 
Steven Whitman of Joshua Tree commented in favor of early payoff of the bonds. 
MSC Coate/Luckman 5/0 to approve staff recommendation to authorize early payoff of ID #2 Bonds and 

withdrawal of $225,000 from the LAIF Opportunity Fund, resulting in interest savings of approximately 
$19,400. 

 

12. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman reported the Public Information 

Committee will meet Friday December 14 at 10 am. President Reynolds appointed Director Fuller to 
replace former Director Long on the Public Information Committee.  

B. AD HOC ENGINEERING AND RECHARGE COMMITTEE:  The Committee did not meet.  
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reported that construction for the recharge pipeline will begin in early January. GM Guzzetta 

is working with Fish and Game on permitting issues and will continue to investigate the necessity of 
obtaining a Fish and Game permit for the recharge project. 

GM Guzzetta reported that the Hi-Desert Medical Center Wastewater Treatment Plant project construction 
is continuing ahead of schedule. 

District employee Jason Sanchez passed away about a week and a half ago; a local memorial service will be 



held this Sunday at 1 pm. 
 

15. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Coate reported attending the Association of California Water Agencies Fall Conference where he 

saw many good presentations including some on insurance benefits. He commented that he appreciates 
having served on the JBWD Board with Bill Long.  

Director Fuller reported attending the Association of California Water Agencies Fall Conference 
presentations on drought planning, use of GIS and many other subjects. She stated she is glad to be here. 

Vice President Luckman attended the Association of California Water Agencies Fall Conference including 
the Joint Powers Insurance Association section on Monday and Tuesday.  

President Reynolds reported attending the Association of California Water Agencies Fall Conference on 
Thursday where he attended a presentation given by FBI on how they deal with potential terrorist threats 
to public water systems, and a seminar on advantages of drinking tap water versus bottled water. He 
expressed his thanks to Bill Long and welcomed Director Victoria Fuller.  President Reynolds dedicated 
the December 12th Special Board meeting to employee Jason Sanchez. 

 

16. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
District Counsel Gil Granito reported on a new section of water code effective January 1, 2013 that states 

every human being has a right to safe clean affordable water. 
 

17. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
None requested. 
 
18. ELECTION OF BOARD PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT 
Director Wilson nominated Director Coate for President. Vice President Reynolds nominated Director 

Luckman for President and Director Coate for Vice President. There was no second to Director Wilson’s 
motion. President Reynolds re-stated his nominations and Director Fuller seconded the nominations.  

Roll call Vote: 
   Coate  Aye 
   Fuller  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
19. ADJOURNMENT  8:24  PM 
The meeting was adjourned by resolution in memory of Jason Sanchez. 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for December 19, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 
 




































































